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Mission Statement
To be successful by

Effectively & efficiently

Utilizing our

Philosophies, so that

We achieve & maintain

Constantly the High Standards of Product Quality

And Customer Satisfaction

Vision & Philosophy
Nothing in this earth or in the heavens

Is hidden from ALLAH

To indulge in honesty, integrity and self determination,

To encourage in performance and

Most of all to put our trust in ALLAH,

So that we may, eventually through our efforts and belief,

Become the leader amongst glass manufacturers

of South Asian Countries

VISION & MISSION

Ghani Value Glass Limited
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Dear Shareholders,

I would like to welcome you at the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

During the year ended June 30, 2023, the Board has played an effective role in managing the affairs of the 
Company and achieving its objectives.

The Board comprises of Directors with diverse and extensive experience who have performed their duties effectively 

and diligently.

The objective of the Board is to provide strategic direction to the Company and to oversee the management. 

The Board performed its duties as required under the Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of 

Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (Regulations).

The Board has reviewed the Company's financial statements periodically along with all governance matters such as 

the transparency of disclosures, policies, corporate plans, budgets and regulatory requirements.

The Board ensures that the accounts fairly represent the financial position of the Company. It also ensures 

effectiveness of internal controls. The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements and HR&R Committee 

overviewed and recommended selection and compensation of senior management team.

The Board ensured that all the legal and regulatory requirements have been complied with by the management of the 

Company. The Board also evaluated its own performance.

The Board has approved Interim Cash Dividend @ 20% i.e Rs.2 per share (already paid) and Interim Stock Dividend 

@ 93.9% (bonus shares already issued) during the year ended June 30, 2023. 

                            
Lahore: October 03, 2023                     Imtiaz Ahmad Khan
                                                                      Chairman

CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

(Rupees in Thousands)

Net Revenue

Gross Profit

Profit before Tax

Profit after Tax

Earning per Share - Basic & Diluted (Rupees)

20222023Highlights

In the name of Allah, The Most merciful and The beneficent

It is indeed a great privilege for me to present the annual report along with audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Financial Performance

Pakistan economy remained nearly stagnated in FY 2022-23. The economy has faced sever challenges during the FY 2022-23. Economic 
activity was heavily knocked by unsustainable fiscal deficit, increasing circular debt, continuous rupee devaluation, rising inflation, low 
foreign reserves, tight policy measures, flash floods, political instability, a balance-of-payments crisis etc. Global economic growth also 
restricted to 2.8 percent (6.2 percent last year) due to the Russia-Ukraine war. The escalation of the conflict between Russia and Ukraine 
caused inflation to rise while exacerbating supply chain pressures especially to energy and food market. Still, the recent removal of 
currency controls and fuel subsidies will keep inflation far above its 10-year average of 8.0%. Industrial and Service sectors negatively 
affected with dwindling foreign reserves, policy tightening, flood impacts, import controls, high borrowing and fuel costs, low confidence, 
and protracted policy and political uncertainty.

During the year, a large part of agriculture land hit by flash floods which resulted in disrupting domestic supply. Estimation of flood damages 
was Rs.3.2 trillion (US$ 14.9 billion), GDP loss amounting to Rs.3.3 trillion (US$ 15.2 billion). Rehabilitation expenditures were Rs.3.5 
trillion (US$16.3 billion). Aggregate demand adversely impacted due to increase in domestic commodity prices for rise in international 
prices and currency depreciation. Current account deficit improved to USD 2,943 million compared to a deficit of USD 15,160 million last 
year as a result of restricted imports. The industrial sector posted a negative growth of 2.94% in FY2023. The services sector witnessed 
nominal growth of 0.86%. Supply chain disruptions would shrink industry output. Agricultural Sector is also expected to contract for the first 
time in more than 20 years due to the floods. The real GDP posted a growth of 0.29% in FY2023. Macroeconomic stability will be better by 
recent arrangements with the IMF. But strong long-term sustainable plan is needed to meet our extensive financing needs in future.

During the year ended June 30, 2023, the Company recorded net revenue of Rupees 3.8 billion (2022: Rupees 3.4 billion). The company 
earned Net Profit of Rupees 515 million (2022: Rupees 756 million). Earning per share was Rupees 3.44 as compared to Rupees 5.04 
(restated) for the last year. The highlights of the Operating and Financial results of the Company are as follow:

During the year under review, net revenue increased to Rupees 3.8 billion as compared to Rupees 3.4 billion

NET REVENUE

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

1,468,336

1,639,595

2019

2021

2020

2,557,944

2022 3,411,370

GROSS PROFIT

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

502,789

473,352

828,398

1,276,210

2019

2021

2020

2022

3,826,844

1,332,456

895,991

515,329

3.44

3,411,370

1,276,210

877,164

755,872

5.04

2023 3,826,844

2023 1,332,456

Restated
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350,127

589,544

230,177

PROFIT AFTER TAX

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

2021

2020

2019

755,8722022

FIXED ASSETS

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

453,881

1,139,366

484,515

2021

2020

2019

1,676,673

2,277,807

2022

2023

TOTAL ASSETS

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

1,178,222

1,314,218

2,555,3512021

2020

2019

2022

2023

3,120,398

4,273,972

SHAREHOLDER EQUITY

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

694,170

806,413

2019

2021

2020

1,460,058

2022

2023

1,571,516

1,932,186

2023 515,329
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Future Outlook

Looking ahead, the next year looks to remain difficult due to multiple factors including escalating energy costs, Pak rupee 
devaluation, rising inflation, macroeconomic instability etc. 

The management has firm belief on almighty ALLAH that all gains and losses are from Him. We believe in values, adapting of 
advancement in technologies, integrity and sustainability. Our team, with the proactive approach, would be considering business 
optimization, contribution to economic development through effective strategy of controlling overall cost of doing business together 
with delivering value to our stakeholders.

Corporate Governance

The directors are pleased to report that your Company has taken necessary steps to comply with the provisions of the Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019 as incorporated in the listing regulations of Pakistan stock 
exchange.

Corporate Financial Reporting Framework

The board firmly believes in the adherence to laws and regulations. The board considers such compliance an essence of success 
and hence takes vigilant part in setting and monitoring Company's strategic direction. We give following statement on Corporate 
and Financial Reporting Framework;

·Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company fairly present its state of affairs, the results of its 
operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

·Books of Accounts

Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.

·Accounting Policies

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting 
estimate are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

·International Accounting Standards

International accounting standards and international financial reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan has been 
applied in preparation of financial statements.

·Internal Controls

The system of internal control has been reviewed and necessary changes are being made to strengthen it further.

·Going Concern

Management sternly believes that with the blessings of Allah SWT and the continued support of all the stakeholders, 
Company shall be able to perform profitably and shall be able to meet up its all liabilities as and when they fall due and 
hence it is and shall remain a going concern with a booming future ahead.

·The main trends and factors likely to affect the future development, performance and position of the company's 
business

Pak Rupee devaluation, increasing gas prices and energy costs, political instability, economic slowdown etc. are factors 
likely to affect the future development, performance and position of the business.

·The impact of the company's business on the environment

There is no adverse impact of company's operation on the environment.

·Change of nature of Company's business

There are no changes that have occurred during the financial year concerning the nature of the business of the company 
or any other company in which the company has interest.
 

·Policy for remuneration of Non-Executive/Independent Directors
 
The company has a policy of not paying remuneration package for Non-Executive and Independent Directors.
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·Directors' responsibility in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls

The  Board  ensures  adequacy  of  internal  control activities  either  directly  or  through  its  Committees. The Board 
also reviews the Company's financial operations and position at regular intervals by means of interim accounts, reports, 
profitability reviews and other financial and statistical information. The Board reviews material budgetary variances and 
actions taken thereon on periodic basis.

·The activities undertaken by the company with regard to corporate social responsibility during the year

We are endeavoring to be a trusted Corporate Citizen and fulfill our responsibility to the society. We are committed to 
follow the highest social standards in how we conduct our business. The company is also committed to be a responsible 
Corporate citizen with welfare of its employees, their families, the local community and society at large.

A CSR project naming “Almaida Lil Ghani” has been started to provide free meal to the poor and needy people; almost 
more than 1000 needy persons have been serving free meal daily on four different locations nationwide

·Best Practices of Corporate Governance

There has been no departure from the best practices of corporate governance as detailed in listing regulations.

·Subsequent Events (after June 30, 2023)

There is no material change and the company has not entered into any commitment, which would materially affect its 
financial position at the date.

·Dividend

The Board has approved Interim Cash Dividend @ 20% i.e. Rs.2 per share (already paid) and Interim Stock Dividend 
@.93.9% (bonus shares already issued) during the year ended June 30, 2023. 

·Audit Committee

The board in compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations has established audit 
committee and the following directors are its members;

1. Mr. Awais Ahmad
2. Mr. Jubair Ghani
3. Mrs. Maryam Junaid

·Key Operating Data

Key operating data for the last six years is annexed.

·Staff Retirement Benefits

The Company operates a funded contributory provident fund scheme for its employees and contributions based on 
salaries of the employees are made to the fund on monthly basis.

·The value of investments and bank balances in respect of staff retirement benefits:

Provident Fund Rupees 123.8 Million

The value of investment includes accrued profit.

·Dealings in Company Shares
       

During the year there was no trading of shares by Directors, CEO, CFO, Company secretary and their spouses and minor 
children. 

   
·Remuneration of Directors and Chief Executive Officer

The detail with respect to remuneration of the Executive Directors and Chief Executive Officer including salary, benefits 
and bonuses for the year ended June 30, 2023, is given in note 28.1.3 to the financial statements.

·Meetings of Directors

The Board of Directors have responsibility to independently and transparently monitor the performance of the Company 
and take strategic decisions to achieve sustainable growth by the Company.

The total number of directors is 12 as per the following:
a. Male: 11 b. Female: 1
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Lahore: October 03, 2023
Anwaar Ahmad Khan       

                     
                                           

      Chief Executive Officer

 

Director
Imtiaz Ahmed Khan

Written notices of the Board meeting along with working papers were sent to the members seven days before meetings. A total of 
six meetings of the Board of Directors and six meetings of the Audit Committee and two meetings of HR & R Committee were held 
during the period of one year, from July 01, 2022 to June 30, 2023. The attendance of the Board members was as follows:

              The composition of board is as follows:

Mr. Jubair Ghani

 Mr. Umair Ghani
 

Executive Directors

Mr. Anwaar Ahmad Khan

Mr. Ibrahim Ghani

Female Directors Mrs. Maryam Junaid

Independent Directors

Mr. Awais Ahmad 
Mr. Muhammad Ayub
 
Mr. Muhammad Mushtaq
 
Mr. Tahir Ghafoor

Mr. Imtiaz Ahmad Khan

 

Mrs. Maryam Junaid 

Mr. Obaid Ghani

 

Non-Executive Directors

Name of the Director
No. of HR & R

Committee Meetings
attended

No. of Board of
Directors’ Meetings

attended

No. of Audit
Committee Meetings

attended

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

-

-

-

-

6

-

-

6

6

-

-

-

-

-

2

-

2

-

-

-

2

-

-

-

Mr. Imtiaz Ahmad Khan

Mr. Anwaar Ahmad Khan

Mr. Aftab Ahmad Khan

Mr. Obaid Ghani

Mr. Jubair Ghani

Mr. Ibrahim Ghani

Mr. Umair Ghani

Mrs. Maryam Junaid

Mr. Awais Ahmed

Mr. Muhammad Mushtaq

Mr. Tahir Ghafoor

Mr. Muhammad Ayub

·Code of Conduct

Code of Conduct in line with the future outlook of the Company has been developed and communicated to all the 
employees of the Company.

·Pattern of Share Holding

The statement of the pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2023 is attached in the prescribed form as required under 
Companies Act 2017.

·Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank all the shareholders, dealers, employees and other stakeholders for their 
valued support and I up hold the confidence they have showed in the management and I pray to Allah SWT for His 
guidance and beg for His end-less mercy for all our endeavors, so that we shall be able to come up with dear rewards for 
all the stakeholders.

We put on record our doubtless faith in Allah SWT and pray to him for the very best of this Company and for all the 
individuals directly or indirectly attached to it.

               For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mr. Aftab Ahmad Khan
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KEY OPERATING DATA AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

Rupees in Thousands

Operating Data

Revenue-net            

Gross profit
             

Profit before tax                

Profit after tax                

Total Assets

Ratios

Gross profit (%)                  

Net Profit (%)                  

Current ratio                  

Earning per share                  

Return on total assets

2018

25.45

14.28

1.66

2.57

0.16

(Rupees)

1,639,595

473,352

229,376

230,177

1,314,218

50%

2020

28.87

14.04

2.44

2.25

0.18

2019

1,468,336

341,137

350,127

1,178,222

70%

502,790

23.85

2.29

0.30

3.61

34.24

2021

2,557,944

828,398

526,579

589,544

2,555,352

60%

- - -

1,189,294

302,710

197,868

169,885

1,086,181

30%

-

32.39

23.05

2.2

4.85

0.23

2023 2022

3,411,370

1,276,210

877,164

755,872

3,120,398

40%

20%

37.41

22.16

1.2

5.04

0.24

3,826,844

1,332,456

895,991

515,329

4,273,972

20%

93.9%

34.82

13.47

1.1

3.44

0.12

Cash Dividend

Stock Dividend
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The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
 
1. The total number of directors is Twelve (12) as per the following:

a. Male: 11
b. Female: 1
 
2. The composition of board is as follows:

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, including this 
company;
  
4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it 
throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures;
 
5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the company. The 
Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the date of approval or updating is 
maintained by the company;
 
6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by board/ shareholders 
as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations;
 
7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the board for this 
purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and 
circulating minutes of meeting of board;
 
8. The board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and these 
Regulations;
 
9. During the year under report, no director has acquired training certification. However, at present, there are following certified 
directors namely:

·Mr. Jubair Ghani
·Mr. Ibrahim Ghani
·Mr. Muhammad Ayub
·Mr. Muhammad Mushtaq
·Mr. Tahir Ghafoor

Further, SECP approval has been obtained for exemption from training for the following Board members:

·Mr. Imtiaz Ahmad Khan
·Mr. Anwaar Ahmad Khan
·Mr. Aftab Ahmad Khan

 WITH THE LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Independent Directors

Mr. Awais Ahmad
 

Mr. Muhammad Ayub

 
Mr. Muhammad Mushtaq

 
Mr. Tahir Ghafoor

Mr. Imtiaz Ahmad Khan
 

Mrs. Maryam Junaid

 

Mr. Obaid Ghani

 

Mr. Jubair Ghani

 
 

Non-Executive Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Anwaar Ahmad Khan

Mr. Aftab Ahmad Khan

Mr. Ibrahim Ghani

Female Directors Mrs. Maryam Junaid

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Mr. Umair Ghani



Sr. No.
 

Non-Mandatory Requirement
 

Regulation 
No.

 Remarks
 

1.
 

Formal Policy
 

16
 

The Company is not paying remuneration to 
individual directors for attending meetings of the 
Board and its committees.  

2. Requirement to attain certification 19 Currently 67% of the directors have attained DTP 
certification/SECP exemption. Company intends 
to ensure that all  the directors attain the required 
certification.  

3. Nomination Committee 29(1) Currently there is no separate committee, 
however the functions are performed by the 
Board as and when needed. 

 4.
 

Risk Management Committee
 

30(1)
 

Currently there is no separate committee, 
however the functions are performed by the 
Board in consultation with the Risk Manager. 
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Chairman
Lahore: October 03, 2023

Imtiaz Ahmed Khan

10. The board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and head of internal audit, including their 
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;
 
11. Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board;

12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below: 

a) Audit Committee 

Mr. Awais Ahmad Chairman
Mr. Jubair Ghani Member
Mrs. Maryam Junaid Member

b) HR and R Committee 

Mr. Awais Ahmad Chairman
Mr. Aftab Ahmad Khan Member
Mr. Jubair Ghani Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee for 
compliance; 
 
14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following:

a) Audit Committee: 6
b) HR and Remuneration Committee: 2

15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose 
and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the company;
  
16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control 
Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that 
they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as 
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not 
a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head 
of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;
  
17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in 
accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have 
observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;
 
18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied 
with;

19.  Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than Regulations 3, 6 , 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 is below:
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REVIEW REPORT

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Ghani Value Glass Limited 
(the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2023 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the 
Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with 
the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of 
the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents 
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and 
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to 
consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an 
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are 
only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party 
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance 
does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in 
the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2023. 

EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants
Lahore: 05 October 2023
UDIN: CR202310076hIwR7T0AW

TO THE MEMBERS OF GHANI VALUE GLASS LIMITED

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019
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Following are the key audit matters:

Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
Revenue Recognition

 

 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Ghani Value Glass Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the statement 
of financial position as at 30 June 2023, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and 
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial position, 
the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of 
cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively 
give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2023 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, 
the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Refer notes 6.15 and 20 to the financial statements relating to 
revenue recognition policy and revenue from contracts with 
customers respectively.

The Company earned revenue from the sale of various types 
of value-added glass and automobiles amounting to Rs. 3.83 
billion (2022: Rs. 3.41 billion).

We have identified revenue recognition as a key audit matter 
considering the significance of amounts involved and the fact 
that as it is one of the key performance indicators of the 
Company and hence revenue may not be appropriately 
recorded

Our audit procedures in respect of this matter included the 
following:

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF GHANI VALUE GLASS LIMITED 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements as at 30 June 2023

Obtained understanding, evaluated the design and tested 
the controls over the process of revenue recognition;

Assessed the appropriateness of the Company's 
accounting policy for recording of revenue in line with the 
requirements of applicable laws, accounting and reporting 
standards;

Performed analytical procedures including developing an 
expectation of the current year revenue based on trend 
analysis information considering historical sales and 
market patterns;

Tested sales transactions near the reporting period and 
evaluated that these were recorded in the appropriate 
accounting period;

Performed verification of sales, on sample basis, with 
underlying supporting evidence; and

Assessed the relevant disclosures made in the ?nancial 
statements to determine whether these complied with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual 
Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the accounting 
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

· Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

· Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal 
control.

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

· Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide to the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 
of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement 
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity 
with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the 
Company's business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Company and 
deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Shaikh Ahmed Salman.

Lahore: 05 October 2023
UDIN: AR202310076CJramYZzx

EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2023

_______________________

CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

_____________________________

                       

Note 2023 2022
ASSETS  Rupees  Rupees 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 7 2,277,807,303

        

1,676,673,393

        

Long-term advances and deposits 8 13,256,085 10,529,035

Deferred taxation 16 - 143,617,691

2,291,063,388

        

1,830,820,119

        

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose tools 9 227,153,452

           

159,108,717

           

Stock-in-trade 10 946,742,867

           

484,293,453

           

Trade receivables 11 262,440,901

           

136,648,520

           

Advances and other receivables 12 198,880,435

           

154,814,878

           

Tax refunds due from Government 13 334,784,837

           

283,058,174

           

Cash and bank balances 14 12,906,072

            

71,654,182

            

1,982,908,564

        

1,289,577,924

        

TOTAL ASSETS 4,273,971,952

        

3,120,398,043

        

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY 

Authorized share capital 1,500,000,000
        

1,500,000,000
        

150,000,000 (2022: 150,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

149,942,175 (2022: 64,441,369) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Capital reserve

Share Premium 171,854,674

           
171,854,674

           Merger reserve 87,059,680

            

87,059,680

            Revaluation surplus on freehold land 255,734,706

           

255,734,706

           2,014,070,810

        
1,159,062,750

        Revenue reserves

General reserve 3,680,000

              

3,680,000

              

Unappropriated profits 429,084,025

           

923,422,686

           

432,764,025

           

927,102,686

           
TOTAL EQUITY 2,446,834,835

        

2,086,165,436

        
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY

Deferred taxation 16 77,958,025

            

-

                       

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 17 1,573,255,363

        

938,581,390

           

Contract liabilities 18 170,048,160

           

90,226,734

            

Unclaimed dividends 5,875,569

              

5,424,483

              

1,749,179,092

        

1,034,232,607

        

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 4,273,971,952 3,120,398,043

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 19

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

1,499,421,750        644,413,690           15

DIRECTOR

____________________
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

              
Note 2023 2022

Rupees Rupees

Revenue from contracts with customers - net 20 3,826,843,574

        

3,411,370,444

        

Cost of sales 21 (2,494,388,062)

       

(2,135,160,160)

       

Gross profit 1,332,455,512

        

1,276,210,284

        

Distribution expenses 22 (65,359,213)

           

(42,756,126)

           

Administrative expenses 23 (381,584,901)

          
(312,117,443)

          

Other operating expenses 24 (69,345,168)
           

(72,687,535)
           

Allowance for expected credit losses 11.3 (16,521,868)           (16,944,203)           

(532,811,150)          (444,505,307)          

Operating profit 799,644,362
           

831,704,977
           

Other income 25 96,346,634

            
45,459,516

            
Profit before tax 895,990,996

           

877,164,493

           
Taxation 26 (380,662,313)

          

(121,292,129)

          Profit for the year 515,328,683

           

755,872,364

           Restated

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 27 3.44 5.04

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

_______________________

CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

_____________________________

DIRECTOR

____________________
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2023 2022

Rupees Rupees

Profit for the year 515,328,683
           

755,872,364
           

Other comprehensive income:

Items that may be reclassified to 

-                        -                       

Items that will not be reclassified to 

-

                        
-

                       
-

                        

-

                       
Total comprehensive income for the year 515,328,683

           

755,872,364

           The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

profit or loss in subsequent period (net of tax):

profit or loss in subsequent period (net of tax):

Other comprehensive income for the year

_______________________

CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

_____________________________

DIRECTOR

____________________
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

                               

Note 2023 2022

Rupees Rupees

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation 895,990,996

           

877,164,493

           

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:

Depreciation of operating fixed assets 7.1.2 87,121,027

            

77,876,822

            

Allowance for expected credit losses 11.3 16,521,868

            

16,944,203

            

Provision for Workers' Profit Participation Fund 24 49,092,902

            

47,225,166

            

Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund 24 20,252,266

            

20,113,656

            

Employees’ provident fund 28.1.2 41,799,404

            

36,146,572

            

Net foreign exchange gain - unrealized 25 (3,580,647)

             

(774,353)

                

Loss on disposal of operating fixed assets 24 -

                        

5,348,713

              

Profit on saving accounts 25 (13,978,082)

           

(12,555,488)

           

197,228,738

           

190,325,291

           

Operating profit before working capital changes 1,093,219,734

        

1,067,489,784

        

Adjustment for working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Stores, spares and loose tools (68,044,735)
           

(80,904,093)
           

Stock-in-trade (462,449,414)
          

(260,676,164)
          

Trade receivables (138,733,602)
          

(97,599,916)
           

Advances and other receivables (43,665,171)           (122,951,842)          

(712,892,922)          (562,132,015)          
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and other payables 615,143,565           424,450,017           
Contract liabilities 79,821,426

            
(5,054,323)
             

694,964,991
           

419,395,694
           

Cash generated from operations 1,075,291,803

        
924,753,463

           Income tax paid (210,252,380)

          

(83,367,250)

           Workers Profit Participation Fund paid (30,906,667)

           

(21,128,098)

           Workers' Welfare Fund paid (20,754,125)

           

(10,326,832)

           
Employees’ provident fund paid (40,514,252)

           

(36,109,914)

           
Profit on saving accounts received 13,577,696

            

14,521,026

            
Net Increase in long-term deposits (2,727,050)

             

-

                       
Net cash flows from operating activities A 783,715,025

           

788,342,395

           
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property, plant and equipment 7 (688,254,937)

          

(676,840,767)

          

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 7.1.1 -

                        

51,308,193

            

Net cash used in investing activities B (688,254,937)

          

(625,532,574)

          

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid (154,208,198)

          

(641,865,641)

          

Net cash used in financing activities C (154,208,198)

          

(641,865,641)

          

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (58,748,110)

           

(479,055,820)

          

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 71,654,182 550,710,002

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 12,906,072 71,654,182

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

             

_______________________

CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

_____________________________

DIRECTOR

____________________



 

 

1 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

The geographical location and address of the Company’s business units, including production facilities are as under:

Business Units Geographical locations

Registered office 40-L, Model Town Extension, Lahore

Glass manufacturing plant 31-KM Sheikhupura Road, Nankana Sahib

Automobile manufacturing plant 49-Km Multan Road, Phool Nagar (Bhai Pheru), Kasur

2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

-

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.

3 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT AND PRESENTATION

3.1 Basis of measurement

3.2 Functional and presentation currency

4 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

4.1 New standards, interpretations, amendments and improvements effective during current period

These amendments had no impact on the separate financial statements of the Company.

IAS 16

Ghani Value Glass Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on 17 March 1967 as a public limited Company under the

Companies Act, 1913 [(Repealed with the enactment of Companies Act, 2017, (the Act)]. The principal activities of the Company are

manufacturing and sales of mirror, tempered glass, laminated glass and automotive vehicles. The shares of the Company are listed on

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the lFRS Standards, the provisions of and

directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the land, which is stated at revalued

amount.

These financial statements have been prepared in Pak Rupees which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial information,

presented in Pak Rupees, has been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless, stated otherwise.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") as notified

under the Companies Act 2017;

Business Combinations – The amendment updates a reference in IFRS 3 to the Conceptual Framework for Financial

Reporting without changing the accounting requirements for business combinations.

The amendments add an exception to the recognition principle of IFRS 3 Business Combinations to avoid the issue of

potential ‘day 2’ gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or IFRIC 21 Levies, if incurred separately. The exception requires

entities to apply the criteria in IAS 37 or IFRIC 21, respectively, instead of the Conceptual Framework, to determine whether

a present obligation exists at the acquisition date. The amendments also add a new paragraph to IFRS 3 to clarify that

contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. In accordance with the transitional provisions, the

Company applies the amendments prospectively, i.e., to business combinations occurring after the beginning of the annual

reporting period in which it first applies the amendments (the date of initial application). 

Property, plant and equipment – Amendment to clarify the prohibition on an entity from deducting from the cost of an item of

property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and

condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognizes

the proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing those items, in profit or loss.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those of the previous financial year,

except for following amendments to accounting standards which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 01, 2022

(unless otherwise stated).

IFRS 3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

                       

                        
In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Company applies the amendments retrospectively only to items of

property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented when the

entity first applies the amendment (the date of initial application). These amendments had no impact on the financial

statements of the Company as there were no sales of such items produced by property, plant and equipment made

available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented. 



4.2

  liability not impact its classification; and  

  disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies; and

- Adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy 

  disclosures.

The amendments to IAS 1 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2023 with earlier application

permitted. Since the amendments to the Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on the application of the

definition of material to accounting policy information, an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The

Company is currently revisiting its accounting policy information disclosures to ensure consistency with the amended

requirements. 

IAS 37

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Fees in the ’10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities - The amendment clarifies the

fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial liability are substantially

different from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower

and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. There is no similar

amendment proposed for IAS 39. This had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

IFRS 16 Leases - In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Company applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are

modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the

amendment (the date of initial application).

This had had no impact on the financial statements of the Company as there were no modifications of the Company’s

financial instruments during the period.

Leases: Lease incentives – The amendment removes the illustration of payments from the lessor relating to leasehold

improvements in Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of 

lease incentives when applying IFRS 16 and had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

IAS 1

In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 to specify the requirements for classifying

liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify:  

• What is meant by a right to defer settlement; 

• That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period; 

• That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right;

• That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would the terms of a 

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 - The amendments aim to help

entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by:

In addition to the above amendments to standards, improvements to various accounting standards (under the annual improvements

2018 - 2020 cycle) have also been issued by the IASB in May 2020. Such improvements were generally effective for accounting periods

beginning on or after July 01, 2022:

Certain amendments to published standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the

Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these, if applicable, when they become effective.

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are not yet effective

• Only covenants with which an entity is required to comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification 

  of a liability as current or non-current. In addition, an entity has to disclose information in the notes that enables 

  users of financial statements to understand the risk that non-current liabilities with covenants could become 

  repayable within twelve months.

IAS 1 and

IFRS 

Practice 

Statement 

2

- Replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to 

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - Amendments to specify that when assessing whether a contract

is onerous or loss-making, an entity needs to include costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services

including both incremental costs (e.g., the costs of direct labour and materials) and an allocation of costs directly related to

contract activities (e.g., depreciation of equipment used to fulfil the contract and costs of contract management and

supervision). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly 

chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. 

The Company applied the amendments to the contracts for which it had not fulfilled all of its obligations at the beginning of

the reporting period. These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company, as prior to the

application of the amendments, the Company had not identified any contracts as being onerous and the unavoidablecosts

under the contracts, which were the costs of fulfilling them, comprised of incremental costs directly related to the contracts

and  an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities.

The adoption of the above amendments to accounting standards did not have any material effect on the financial

statements.

Presentation of Financial Statements to clarify how to classify debt and other liabilities as current or non-current:

Ghani Value Glass Limited 23

IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to IAS 8 - The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in

accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. Also, they clarify how entities use

measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2023 and apply to changes in

accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is

permitted as long as this fact is disclosed. The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s

financial statements. 



Insurance Contracts

5

5.1

5.2

5.3 Significant estimates and assumptions

a) Impairment of financial and non-financial assets – (Note 6.6 & 6.7)

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of time before the reporting date and the

corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-

looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

The Company reviews the useful lives, residual value and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment on a regular basis.

Any change in estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of respective items of property, plant and equipment with a

corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected loss

allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets. 

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to IAS 12 - In May 2021,

IASB issued amendments to IAS 12, which narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under IAS 12, so that it no

longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

IAS 12

(Annual periods 

beginning on or after)

01 January 2004

01 January 2023

In addition to the above, the following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the Securities and

Exchange Commission of Pakistan for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan:

Standard

First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting

Standards

IFRS 1

IFRS 10 

& IAS 28

Consolidated Financial Statements and Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investorand its Associate or Joint Venture – (Amendment). The effective date of Amendments to IFRS 10 and

IAS 28 has been deferred indefinitely (until the research project of IASB, on the equity method, has been concluded.) Earlier

application of the September 2014 amendments continues to be permitted. The Company expects that the adoption of the

amendments will have no material effect on the Company's financial statements.

IFRS 17

The above are not expected to have any significant impact on financial statements of the Company.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approvedaccounting standards requires management to make judgments,

estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions and judgments are based on historical experience and various other factors that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of

assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the

period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods. The areas where various assumptions and estimates that have a significant risk and result in

material adjustments to the Company's financial statements or where judgments, that had the significant effect on the amounts that

have been recognized in the period, were exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

Estimated useful lives, residual values and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period

presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, a deferred tax asset (provided that

sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability should also be recognised for all deductible and taxable

temporary differences associated with leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments are not expected to have

a material impact on the Company’s financial statements. 

SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
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6 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

6.1

6.2

6.2.1

Revenue reserve is the reserve which is regarded as available for distribution through the profit or loss including general reserves and

other specific reserves created out of profit and un-appropriated or accumulated profits of previous years.

Share capital 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new

shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, if any. 

Reserves

Revenue reserve

Reserve are classified into two categories as follows:
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6.2.2

6.3 Property, plant and equipment

6.3.1 Operating fixed assets

(a) Measurement

(b) Revaluation

(c) De-recognition

6.3.2 Capital work-in-progress

6.4 Stores, spares and loose tools

6.5 Stock-in-trade

These are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The method used for the calculation of cost is as follows:

- Raw materials on weighted average cost.

- Raw materials in transit at invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.

- Finished goods at weighted average cost which consists of prime cost and appropriate manufacturing overheads.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve includes all the reserves other than the ones classified as revenue reserves.

These are valuedat lower of weighted averagecost and net realizable value. Provision is made for slow moving and obsolete items, and

items considered obsolete are carried at nil value.

An item of operating fixed assets is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or

disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds

and carrying amount of the asset) is included in statement of profit or loss of the year the asset is derecognized.

These are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. All expenditure, connected to the specific assets, incurred during installation

and construction year are carried under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are

available for use.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary to be incurred to make

the sale. 

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are credited to surplus on revaluationof

property, plant and equipment. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same assets are charged against this surplus, all

other decreases are charged to income. The surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is not available for distribution 

to the shareholders. The Company engages third party independent valuer to perform revaluation of land after every three years.

The Company believes that there is no significant difference in the carrying value and fair value as at year end. 

Depreciation is calculated using reducing balance method at the rates disclosed in Note 7, which are considered appropriate to

write-off the cost of the assets over their estimated remaining useful lives. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in

which an asset is acquired or capitalized while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off. The

assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.

Operating fixed assets, other than freehold land which is stated at revalued amount, are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is

probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be

measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to statement of profit or loss during the year in which they

are incurred.

6.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company bases its impairment calculation on most recent budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for

each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists,

or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s

recoverableamount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is

determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other

assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered

impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that

reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs

of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model

is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available

fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in expense categories consistent with the

function of the impaired asset.
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6.7 Financial Instruments

Financial assets 

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the

Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing

component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair

value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not

contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the

transaction price.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which the goodwill

relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized. Impairment

losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of

another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other

comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.  

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the

market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the

asset.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that

previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the

asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the

assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited

so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been 

determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment losses been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in

the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revaluedamount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation

increase.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash

flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as

the SPPI test and is performedat an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured

at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash

flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,

or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortized cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold

financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are

held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. 

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

- Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments) 

- Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments) 

-

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

The Company doesn't have any financial assets measured at fair value through OCI.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, foreign exchange and revaluation are recognized in the statement of other

comprehensive income whereas interest income and impairment losses or reversals are recognized in the statement of profit or loss

and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortized cost. The remaining fair value changes are

recognized in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognized in OCI is recycled to profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (EIR) method and are subject to

impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired. 

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair

value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.

The classification is determined on an instrument by instrument basis. 

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity

instruments) 

The Company's financial assets at amortized cost include balances at bank, trade and other receivables, Profit accrued on saving

accounts, margin deposits and advances to employees against salaries.

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt instruments)
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The Company hasn't elected to classify any financial assets under this category.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

-
-

The Company doesn't have any financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized

(i.e., removed from the statement of financial position) when:

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognized as other income in the

statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as

a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair 

value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair

value recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying

amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received

cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or 

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it

evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained

substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the

transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The

transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has

retained.

Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement

Subsequent measurement

For the purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories: 

- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

- Financial liabilities at amortized cost (loans and borrowings) 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

The Company's financial liabilities includes trade and other payables and unclaimed dividends.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or

payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly

attributable transaction costs. 

For trade receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes

in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a

provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-lookingfactors specific to the debtors and the

economic environment. 

Impairment

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial

recognition, ECLs are providedfor credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month

ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance

is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or

loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows

that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will

include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon

initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses

on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition,

and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or

loss. 
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Financial liabilities at amortized cost

The Company has designated trade and other payables and unclaimed dividends at amortized cost.

Derecognition

6.8 Offsetting of financial instruments 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part

of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing

financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are

substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a

new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if

there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise

the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loan is subsequently measured at

amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are

derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. 

6.9 Trade receivables

6.10 Cash and bank balances

6.11 Staff retirement benefit

Defined contribution plan

6.12 Trade and other payables

6.13 Provisions and contingencies

a) Provisions

b) Contingencies

6.14 Contract liabilities

6.15 Revenue recognition

The Company has applied the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses (as disclosed in note 6.4), which uses a lifetime

expected loss allowance. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on days overdue.

Cash and bank balances are carried in the statement of financial position at amortized cost less impairment allowance if any. For the

purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances as they are considered as

integral part of the Company's cash management.

The Company operates a defined contribution plan in the form of recognized provident fund scheme covering all its eligible employees

i.e. employees who have completed six month period with the Company. Equal monthly contributions are made by the Company and

employees to the fund at the rate of 8.33% (2022: 8.33%) of gross salary of employees. The Company's contributions are recognized

as employee benefit expense when they are due. If contribution payments exceed the contribution due for service, the excess is

recognized as an asset.

Liabilities for trade and other amount payable are carried at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for

goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

Provisions are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a

result of past events and it is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the

obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. However, provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial

position date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate. 

Trade receivables are initially recognized at their transaction price under IFRS 15 and subsequently measured at amortized cost, less

any allowance for expected credit losses.

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution into a separate entity and

will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are

recognized as an employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized

as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existence will be

confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the

Company; or the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that

an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation

cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an

amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to

the customer, a contract liability is recognized. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company satisfied it

performance obligation under the contract.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in a contract with a customer. The

Company recognizes revenue when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer.
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a) Sales of goods

b) Rendering of services

6.16 Foreign currency transactions and translation

Revenuerelated to auto parts is recognized at a point in time when goods are delivered to customers. It is the time when control

relating to ownership of goods is transferred to the buyer.

The Company has concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements.

Revenue is recognized at a point in time when services are rendered to customers. 

Revenue is measured at the transaction price agreed under the contract, adjusted for variableconsideration such as discount, if

any. As there is only one performance obligation, the revenue is recognized at full amount. The Company pays commission and

incentives on the revenue to the dealers which are net off against the revenue.

Revenueis recognized at a point in time when goods are deliveredto customers and bill of lading is prepared for local and exports

sales respectively. It is the time when control relating to ownership of goods is transferred to the buyer.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Rupees, at the foreign exchange rates prevailing at the date of

transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Rupees at the foreign exchange rates at the
reporting date. Exchange differences are taken to the statement of profit or loss.

6.17 Taxation

6.17.1 Income Tax

I)

ii)

6.17.2

-

-

6.18 Earnings per share

6.19

Segment results that are reported to the CEO includes items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated

on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets, income tax assets, liabilities and related income and

expenditure. Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment and trade debts. Segment liabilities comprise of

operating liabilities and exclude items such as taxation and corporate payables.

The business segments are engaged in providing products and services which are subject to risks and rewards which differ from the risk 

and reward of other segment, segments reported are glass and automobile. 

When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverablefrom the taxation authority, in which case, the

sales tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as in Tax refunds due from the

Government in the statement of financial position.

Current tax 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses and credits only if it is probable

that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and unused tax losses and credits. 

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the

reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable

tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid

to the tax authorities.

Segment reporting

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable

income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax

losses. The charge for income tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years

arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and

liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)

that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related

deferred income tax asset is realized, or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (‘EPS’) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing

the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding during the year. 

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company (after adjusting for interest on the

convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted

average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.  

Sales tax

Current and deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Segment reporting is based on the operating business segments of the Company. An operating segment is a component of the

Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses

that relates to transactions with Company other operating segment. An operating segment's operating results are reviewedby the CEO

to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance for which discrete financial information

is available.

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax, except:
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6.20 Fair value measurement 

-

-

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or

transfer the liability takes place either: 

In the principal market for the asset or liability; or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

-

-

-

6.21 Current versus non-current classification 

-

-

-

-

A liability is current when: 

-

-

-

-

6.22  Dividend and appropriation to reserves

6.23 Events after the reporting period

6.24 Transactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties are conducted in normal course of business in accordance with the agreed terms and conditions. All

the related party transactions are presented for approval of shareholders in General Meeting in accordance with the requirements of

Section 208 of Companies Act, 2017.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value

hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company determines

whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by

using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best

use. 

The Company recognizes a liability to pay a dividend when the distribution is authorized by the Board of Directors of the Company (the

Board), and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. A corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity.

If the Company receives information after the reporting period, but prior to the date of authorization for issue, about conditions that

existed at the end of the reporting period, the Company will assess if the information affects the amounts that it recognizes in the

financial statements. The Company will adjust the amounts recognized in its financial statements to reflect any adjusting events after

the reporting period and update the disclosures that relate to those conditions in the light of the new information. For non-adjusting

events after the reporting period, the Company will not change the amounts recognized in its financial statements but will disclose the

nature of the non-adjusting event and an estimate of its financial effect, or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made, if

applicable. 

It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not

affect its classification. 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax asset or liabilities are classified as non-current assets or

liabilities.

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current / non-current classification. An

asset is current when it is: 

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

As at reporting date, the Company has fair value modelling for financial or non-financial assets as mentioned in Note 31.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or

indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to

measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or

liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 
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Note 2023 2022

7.1.2 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows: Rupees Rupees

Cost of sales 21 68,652,563 66,022,851

Distribution expenses 22 264,414 75,613

Administrative expenses 23 18,204,050 11,778,358

87,121,027 77,876,822

7.1.3 Particulars of immovable assets of the Company as at 30 June 2023 are as follows:

7.1.3.1 Glass manufacturing plant, measuring 175.28 kanal ,situated at 31-KM Sheikhupura Road, Nankana Sahib.

7.1.3.2 Automobile manufacturing plant measuring 41.8 kanal, situated at 49-Km Multan Road, Phool Nagar (Bhai Pheru), Kasur.

7.1.4

Note 2023 2022

7.2 Capital work-in-progress Rupees Rupees

High fuel operating generator 7.2.1 102,258,674 -

Appliance project 7.2.2 873,943,015 500,834,731
7.2.3 976,201,689 500,834,731

7.2.1

Note 2023 2022

7.2.3 The reconciliation of the carrying amount is as follows: Rupees Rupees

Opening balance 500,834,731 25,787,554

Additions 525,382,595 475,047,177

1,026,217,326 500,834,731

Transferred during the year (50,015,637) -

Closing balance 976,201,689 500,834,731

8 LONG-TERM ADVANCES AND DEPOSITS

Advance for the implementation of SAP 8.1 2,727,050 -

Long-term deposits 8.2 10,529,035

           

10,529,035

          

13,256,085

           

10,529,035

          

8.1

8.2

Note 2023 2022

Rupees Rupees

Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL) 6,017,610

            

6,017,610

           

Lahore Electric Supply Company Limited (LESCO) 4,408,925

            

4,408,925

           

Other parties 102,500

               

102,500

              

8.2.1 10,529,035

           

10,529,035

          

8.2.1

2023 2022

9 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS Rupees Rupees

Stores 196,026,219

         

140,263,204

        

Spares 24,453,057

           

13,334,375

          

Loose tools 6,674,176

            

5,511,138

           

227,153,452

         

159,108,717

        

10 STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw materials 567,959,439

         

326,964,201

        

Finished goods          378,783,428 157,329,252

        

946,742,867

         

484,293,453

        

                     

                 

                 

                      

                 

                   
                 

                                    

                                      

Property, plant and equipment includes fully-depreciated assets havingcost of Rs. 39,603,216 (2022: Rs. 39,603,216) that are still in

use as at the reporting date.

This includes to generation of high fuel operating generator that will help to provide electricity to the whole plant located in 31-KM

Sheikhupura Road, Nankana Sahib.

This represents advance paid for the implementation of SAP that will replace the existing Oracle system.

7.2.2 This includes construction of tempering unit and facilities for appliance products situated at 31-KM Sheikhupura Road, Nankana Sahib. 

This will be used for designing of glass for home appliance glass products.

The present value adjustment in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' arising in respect of long-term

advances is not considered material and hence not recognized.

This includes deposits provided to the following parties against connection of utilities and provision of services:
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Note 2023 2022

11 TRADE RECEIVABLES Rupees Rupees

Local:

 - Secured 11.1 79,992,301 13,874,322

 - Unsecured - considered goods 268,493,001 177,831,042

348,485,302 191,705,364
Foreign:

 - Secured 3,382,362 17,848,051

11.2 351,867,664 209,553,415

Less: allowance for expected credit losses 11.3 (89,426,763) (72,904,895)

262,440,901 136,648,520

11.1

2023 2022

Aging of receivable from Ghani Ceramics Limited (Rupees) (Rupees)

Current 436,232 -

Past due 1-90 days 12,600 -

Past due 91-180 days - -

Past due 181-365 days -

                      

402,854

              

Past due 365 days or above 402,854

               

-

                     

851,686

               

402,854

              

11.2 Age analysis of these trade receivables and information about the credit exposures are disclosed in Note 30.2.1.

11.3 Set out below is the movement of the allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables:
2023 2022

Rupees Rupees

Opening balance 72,904,895

           

55,960,692

          

Allowance for expected credit losses 16,521,868

           

16,944,203

          

Closing balance 89,426,763

           

72,904,895

          

12 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Advances to suppliers 193,976,481

         

148,166,222

        

Advances to employees:

- against salaries 1,944,739 805,173

- against expenses 1,886,181

            

170,835

Profit accrued on saving accounts 1,073,034

            

672,648

              

Receivable against sale of freehold land - 5,000,000

198,880,435

         

154,814,878

        

13 TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT

Income tax refundable          269,233,875 276,515,141

        

Sales tax - net            65,550,962 6,543,033

           

334,784,837

         

283,058,174

        

13.1

14 CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note 2023 2022

Rupees Rupees
Balances with banks in:

- current accounts 9,100,079

            

19,988,731

          

- saving accounts 14.1 3,178,183

            

51,295,009

          

12,278,262

           

71,283,740

          

Cash in hand 627,810

               

370,442

              

12,906,072

           

71,654,182

          

14.1

This includes interest free amount receivable from related parties Ghani Ceramics Limited of Rs. 851,686 million (2022: Rs. 402,854). The

maximum amount due from Ghani Ceramics Limited during the year, calculated by reference to month-end balances, was Rs. 851,686 (2022:

Rs. 402,854). The aging of trade receivables from Ghani Ceramics Limited is as follows:

This represent the amount of advance income tax recoverablefrom tax authorities net of current year's provision for taxation amounting

to Rs. 159,086,597 (2022: Rs. 147,150,503).

Rate of profit on saving accounts ranges from 7.13% to 17.25% (2022: 5.22% to 10.97%) per annum.
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15 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

2023 2022 Note 2023 2022

Rupees Rupees

57,799,273

 

57,799,273

          

577,992,730

         

577,992,730

        

232,000

 

232,000

               

2,320,000

            

2,320,000

           

12,888,274

 

-

                      

128,882,740

         

-

                     

72,612,532

 

-

                      

726,125,320

         

-

                     

85,500,806

 

-

                      

855,008,060

         

-

                     

6,410,096

 

6,410,096

            

64,100,960

           

64,100,960

          

149,942,175 64,441,369

           

15.1 1,499,421,750

      

644,413,690

        

15.1 Movement during the year is as follows:

Balance as at 01 July 64,441,369           64,441,369          

Shares issued as fully paid bonus shares 85,500,806           -                     
Balance as at 30 June 149,942,175         64,441,369          

16 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation relates to the following:

Opening balance

Charged to other 

comprehensive 

income

Charged / 

(credited) to 

profit or loss

Closing 

balance

Deductible temporary differences arising from:

Allowance for expected credit losses 24,058,615

           

-

                      

10,817,823

           

34,876,438

          

Tax credits 208,990,385

         

-

                      

(208,990,385)

        

-

                     

Taxable temporary difference arising from:

Accelerated tax depreciation (89,431,309)

          

-

                      

(23,403,154)

          

(112,834,463)

       

143,617,691

         

-

                      

(221,575,716)

        

(77,958,025)

         

Opening balance

Charged to other 

comprehensive 

income

Charged / 

(credited) to profit 

or loss

Closing 

balance

Deductible temporary differences arising from:

Allowance for expected credit losses 16,228,601 - 7,830,014 24,058,615

Trade and other payables 1,725,641 - (1,725,641) -

Alternate corporate tax 1,830,048 - (1,830,048) -

Tax credits 176,773,894 - 32,216,491 208,990,385

Taxable temporary difference arising from:

Accelerated tax depreciation (78,798,867) - (10,632,442) (89,431,309)

117,759,317 - 25,858,374 143,617,691

--------------------------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------------------------

2022

Ordinary shares of Rs.10

each issued as fully paid

bonus shares

Opening

Issued during the year :

Final bonus shares issued - 

2022 @ 20% per share

Interim bonus shares issued 

- 2023 - @ 93.9% per share

Ordinary shares of Rs.10

each allotted for

consideration paid in cash

Shares issued pursuant to

merger  @ Rs. 10 per share

No. of Shares

--------------------------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------------------------

2023
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16.1

Note 2023 2022

17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Rupees Rupees

Trade payables 28.1.1 1,289,992,722

      

687,325,672

        

Security deposits - dealers 17.1 57,776,743

           

57,776,743

          

Accrued liabilities 17.2 111,927,582

         

102,283,653

        

Payable to employees’ provident fund 17.3 3,669,252

            

2,384,100

           

Workers' Welfare Fund payable (WWF) 17.4 15,235,450

           

15,737,309

          

Workers' Profit Participation Fund payable (WPPF) 17.5 72,308,548

           

54,122,313

          

Withholding tax payable 17,754,978

           

17,194,098

          

Advances from employees' against vehicle 4,590,088

            

1,757,502

           

1,573,255,363

      

938,581,390

        

17.1

17.2

17.3

Note 2023 2022

17.4 Workers' Welfare Fund Rupees Rupees

Opening balance 15,737,309

           

5,950,485

           

Charge for the year 24 20,252,266

           

20,113,656

          

Payment made during the year (20,754,125)

          

(10,326,832)

         

Closing balance 15,235,450

           

15,737,309

          

17.5 Workers' Profit Participation Fund 

Opening balance 54,122,313

           

28,025,245

          

Charge for the year 24 49,092,902

           

47,225,166

          

Payments made during the year (30,906,667)

          

(21,128,098)

         

Closing balance 72,308,548

           

54,122,313

          

18 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 20.4.2 170,048,160

         

90,226,734

          

19 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

19.1 Contingencies

19.1.1

19.1.2 The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (the "DCIR") issued notice dated 12 January 2023 under Section 4C of the Ordinance

requiring the Company to pay Super Tax amounting to Rs. 39.9 million. The Company made due compliance of the above referred

notice; however, the DCIR concluded the proceedings and issued the Order under Section 4C of the Ordinance dated 31 January 2023

while creating the demand of Rs. 39.9 million. The Company filed an appeal against the said Order before the CIR (A), who vide Order

dated 23 August 2023, disposed of the appeal while confirming the Order passed by the DCIR. Being aggrieved with the decision of

CIR(A), the Company preferredan appeal before the ATIR against the order of the CIR (A) which is pending adjudication. The Company

expects a favourable outcome of the matter, hence, no provision has been recorded in this regard.

Under the Finance Act, 2023, a corporate tax rate of 29% has been fixed with an additional super tax of 10% (2022: 4%) for the

persons having income more than Rs. 500 million (2022: Rs. 300 million). Therefore, deferred tax assets and liabilities have been

recognized and remeasured accordingly using the enacted applicable rate i.e. 39% (2022: 33%).

These represent security deposits received from dealers as security against the credit allowed and are repayable on demand. The

Company has the right-to-use these deposits as per agreements with the dealers and the deposits carry no interest. All the funds have 

been utilized for the purpose of the business. The Company has netting off arrangement in respect of these deposits and in case of

default, such deposits will be adjusted against the balance receivable from such customers.

These represent advances from dealers against which the Company has performance obligation to provide goods and services in

future. The above performance obligation are expected to be recognized within one year.

All investments out of provident fund have been made in the collective investment schemes, listed equity securities in accordance with

the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for the purpose.

These include an amount of Rs. 15,269,189 (2022: Rs. 4,489,315) payable to the Directors of the Company in respect of

reimbursement of expenses.

The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue(the Addl. CIR) issued Order dated 28 August 2013 under section 122(1) / 122(5A) of the

Ordinance pertaining to Tax year 2012 disallowing certain add backs and raised a demand of Rs. 4.7 million. The Company filed an

appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [the “CIR (A)”] who allowed partial relief to the Company. The Company filed 

rectification application against the order issued by the CIR (A) on the ground that while issuing the order under section 129 of the

Ordinance, the CIR (A) has not adjudicated certain grounds contested by the Company. CIR (A) issued Order while directing the

Officer to allow the adjustments of refunds claimed as per available records. However, CIR (A) refused to rectify Order on other

grounds. Being aggrieved, the Company and the department has filed cross appeals before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue

(ATIR) who has decided the case in favour of taxpayer company, however the taxpayer is not aware about any reference filed by the

tax authorities before Lahore High Courts. The Company expects a favourableoutcome of the matter, hence, no provision has been

recorded in this regard.
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19.2 Commitments 2023 2022

19.2.1 Commitments in respect of capital and revenue expenditures Rupees Rupees

Store and spares            22,913,138                         -   

Raw material            88,142,740                         -   

         111,055,878                         -   

19.2.2 Guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Company 2023 2022

Rupees Rupees

In favour of LESCO             5,129,774             5,129,774 

In favour of SNGPL            43,319,957          114,319,957 

           48,449,731          119,449,731 

19.2.3

20 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS - NET

20.1 Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:
2023 2022

Type of goods or services Rupees Rupees

Local 4,840,583,691

      

4,306,919,358

      

Export 87,516,499

           

72,301,122

          

4,928,100,190

      

4,379,220,480

      

Less: sales tax (740,607,669)

        

(621,384,131)

       

Less: incentive of dealers (128,167,056)

        

(124,547,704)

       

Less: commission on sales (232,481,891)

        

(221,918,201)

       

Total revenue from customers 3,826,843,574

      

3,411,370,444

      

Type of goods or service

Sales of mirror glass       3,113,646,031 3,211,726,781

      

Sales of tempered and non-tempered glass          903,349,677 534,842,646

Sales of frosted glass          664,483,787 437,780,649

Rendering of tempering glass and others          119,955,498 114,209,564

Sales of laminated glass 115,426,959 54,570,648

Sales of automobiles 11,238,238 26,090,192

4,928,100,190 4,379,220,480

Less: sales tax (740,607,669) (621,384,131)

Less: incentive of dealers (128,167,056) (124,547,704)

Less: commission on sales (232,481,891) (221,918,201)

Total revenue from customers 3,826,843,574 3,411,370,444

Geographical markets 

Pakistan 3,742,165,412 3,339,069,322

United Kingdom - 43,411,387

Jordan - 24,625,120

Afghanistan 21,563,105 -

Greece 3,071,459 -

South Africa 46,625,992 4,264,615

Sri Lanka 12,870,813 -

Turkey 3,385,129 -

3,829,681,910 3,411,370,444

Timing of revenue recognition

Goods / services transferred at a point in time 3,826,843,574 3,411,370,444

20.2 Performance obligation

20.3 Revenue from major customer

Note 2023 2022

20.4 Contract balances Rupees Rupees
Trade receivables 20.4.1 262,440,901 136,648,520

Contract liabilities 20.4.2 170,048,160 90,226,734

20.4.1

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time for sale of goods and rendering of services. The Company makes sales

against advances as well as on credit terms.

Revenue from one customer of the Company’s glass manufacturing segment i.e. Glass World amounting to Rs. 483,738,696 (2022:

Rs. 467,259,876) represents approximately 12% (2022: 12%) of the Company’s total revenues.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 days. The increase in trade receivables pertains to

increase in overall revenue from customers during the year.

In addition, the Company has also obtained non-funded facilities of letters of credits and guarantees aggregating to Rs. 679.44 million

(2022: Rs. 1,251 million). The aggregated un-utilized facilities at year end amounts to Rs. 519.93 million (2022: Rs. 1,131.99 million).

These finances are secured against first charge of Rs. 513.5 million (2022: Rs. 1047.5 million) and ranking charge of Rs. 267 million

(2022: Rs. 267 million) respectively over current assets of the Company.
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20.4.2

Note 2023 2022

21 COST OF SALES Rupees Rupees

Cost of raw material consumed 21.1 1,941,991,353 1,653,602,646

Fuel and power 244,943,047 172,000,528

Salaries, wages and benefits 21.2 203,160,065 153,689,856

Donations 23.2 86,996,232 77,202,696

Depreciation of operating fixed assets 7.1.2 68,652,563 66,022,851

Stores, spares and loose tools consumed 21.3 61,456,146 49,821,349

Packing, loading and unloading 29,537,900

           

23,862,019

          

Entertainment 16,548,937

           

11,733,887

          

Repair and maintenance 16,805,339

           

11,730,337

          

Freight and handling 9,490,190

            

7,997,601

           

Traveling and conveyance 27,953,648

           

9,080,268

           

Insurance 595,270

               

1,144,990

           

Communication 1,722,693

            

949,918

              

Miscellaneous expenses 5,988,855

            

10,031,050

          

Cost of goods manufactured 2,715,842,238

      

2,248,869,996

      

Finished goods

Add: Opening balance 157,329,252

         

43,619,416

          

Less: Closing balance 10 (378,783,428)

        

(157,329,252)

       

2,494,388,062

      

2,135,160,160

      

21.1 Cost of raw material consumed

Opening stock 326,964,201

         

164,798,753

        

Add: Purchased during the year 2,182,986,591

      

1,815,768,094

      

2,509,950,792

      

1,980,566,847

      

Less: Closing stock (567,959,439)

        

(326,964,201)

       

1,941,991,353

      

1,653,602,646

      

21.2

Note 2023 2022

21.3 Stores, spares and loose tools consumed Rupees Rupees

Opening stock 159,108,717

         

78,204,624

          

Add: Purchased during the year 129,500,881

         

130,725,442

        

288,609,598

         

208,930,066

        

Less: Closing stock (227,153,452)

        

(159,108,717)

       

61,456,146

           

49,821,349

          

22 DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits 22.1 22,900,127

           

22,855,535

          

Freight, handling and forwarding 15,257,434

           

9,286,234

           

Sale promotion 13,705,175

           

2,538,500

           

Insurance 3,843,717

            

3,321,338

           

Traveling and conveyance 5,355,635

            

2,293,864

           

Communication 621,204

               

413,752

              

Entertainment 1,976,653

            

1,057,430

           

Vehicles' maintenance 1,295,562

            

623,858

              

Depreciation of operating fixed assets 7.1.2 264,414

               

75,613

                

Miscellaneous expenses 139,292

               
290,002

              

65,359,213
           

42,756,126
          

22.1

Contract liabilities represent short-term advances received to delivergoods. The outstanding balances of these accounts increased in

current year due to the continuous increase in the Company’s customers' demand. Contract liabilities as at the beginning of the year,

aggregating to Rs. 90,226,734 (2022: Rs. 95,281,057), have been recognized as revenue upon dispatch of goods.

This includes amount of Rs.13,728,634 (2022: Rs. 11,502,214) in respect of contribution towards employees' provident fund.

This includes amount of Rs.1,607,242 (2022: Rs.1,620,350 ) in respect of contribution towards employees' provident fund.
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Note 2023 2022

23 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Rupees Rupees

Salaries, wages and benefits 23.1 263,259,679

         

248,306,071

        
Entertainment 10,611,478

           

5,118,920

           
Depreciation of operating fixed assets 7.1.2 18,204,050

           

11,778,358

          

Donations 23.2 21,559,029

           

19,300,674

          

Traveling and conveyance 20,658,217

           

7,081,407

           

Legal and professional charges 544,330

               

600,000

              

Subscription and periodicals 21,401,047

           

10,015,889

          

Auditor's remuneration 23.3 2,861,250

            

1,791,550

           

Communication 1,432,976

            

1,180,476

           

Vehicles' maintenance 3,230,139

            

3,290,246

           

Bank charges 2,682,952

            

1,535,715

           

Printing and stationery 1,221,124

            

461,539

              

Miscellaneous expenses 13,918,630

           

1,656,598

           

381,584,901

         

312,117,443

        

23.1

2023 2022

23.2 Donations Rupees Rupees

Party wise breakup of donation paid during the year is as follows:

Ghani Foundation Trust          108,555,261            96,503,370 

23.2.1

Name of director

Mr. Imtiaz Ahmad Khan

Mr. Anwaar Ahmad Khan

Mr. Aftab Ahmad Khan

Mr. Jubair Ghani

Mr. Ibrahim Ghani

Note 2023 2022

23.3 Auditor's remuneration Rupees Rupees

Audit fee             1,680,000             1,152,381 

Review of half yearly financial statements                420,000                247,619 

Fee for other assurance services                475,000                242,857 

Out of pocket expenses                150,000                  63,381 

Add: sales tax                136,250                  85,312 

            2,861,250             1,791,550 

24 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Workers' Welfare Fund 17.4 20,252,266 20,113,656

Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) 17.5 49,092,902 47,225,166

Loss on disposal of operating fixed asset 7.1.1 - 5,348,713

69,345,168 72,687,535

25 OTHER INCOME

Profit on saving accounts 13,978,082 12,555,488

Scrap sales 53,337,222 21,381,015

Reimbursement of shared expenses 25.1 21,532,693 10,748,660

Exchange gain 7,498,637 774,353

96,346,634 45,459,516

25.1 This represents amount agreed to Ghani Glass Limited, a related party, for the use of combined office space at the agreed terms and

conditions.

The Directors of the Company who have interest in Ghani Foundation Trust (donee) are following.

Name and address of donee

    40-L, Extension. Model Town, 

Lahore, Punjab.

Interest in donee

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

This includes amount of Rs. 26,463,528 (2022: Rs. 23,024,008) in respect of contribution towards employees' provident fund and the

expense related to remuneration in respect of Chief Executive, Directors and the Executives is disclosed in note 28.1.3 to the financial

statements.
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2023 2022
26 TAXATION

Rupees Rupees
Income tax 

Current year 159,086,597 127,993,393

Prior year - 19,157,110

159,086,597 147,150,503
Deferred tax

Current year 12,585,331 (25,858,374)

Prior year 208,990,385 -
380,662,313 121,292,129

26.1 Reconciliation between the current tax at average effective tax rate and applicable tax rate

Profit before taxation 895,990,996 877,164,493

Tax at 29% A 259,837,389

         

254,377,703

        

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year -

                      

19,157,110

          

Effect of tax credits (228,955,835)

        

(193,709,732)

       

Effect of non-deductible expenses for tax purposes 253,056,742

         

2,409,077

           

Effect of deductible expenses for tax purposes 6,456,920

            

14,119,635

          

Alternate corporate tax carried forward -

                      

(6,310,512)

          

Effect of amounts subject to fixed / final taxes 875,165

               

723,011

              

Repair allowance under section 15A (1,248,896)

           

(623,422)

             

Effect of different tax regime and rate (10,294,863)

          

(8,931,255)

          

Effect of super tax rate 100,935,691

         

40,080,514

          

B 120,824,924

         

(133,085,574)

       

A+B 380,662,313

         

121,292,129

        

27 EARNINGS PER SHARE

27.1 Basic earnings per share 2023 2022

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (Rupees) 515,328,683

         

755,872,364

Restated

Ordinary number of shares 149,942,175

         

149,942,175

        

Number of shares issued pursuant to merger -

                      

-

                     

Weighted average number of ordinary shares as at year end 149,942,175 149,942,175

Earnings per ordinary share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 3.44 5.04

27.2 Diluted earnings per share

27.3

28 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Details of related parties of the Company

Basis of relationship

Ghani Glass Limited Associated company by virtue of common directorship

Ghani Group Services Limited Associated company by virtue of common directorship

Associated company by virtue of common directorship

Ghani Foundation Trust Associated company by virtue of common directorship

Ghani Accessory & Sanitary Fitting (Private) Ltd Associated company by virtue of common directorship

Ghani Taameraat (Private) Limited Associated company by virtue of common directorship

Ghani Metal and Rubber Industries (Private) Ltd Associated company by virtue of common directorship

Ahmad Brothers Materials (Private) Limited Associated company by virtue of common directorship

Staff retirement benefit Retirement benefit

Related parties comprise subsidiaries, associated companies, companies where directors also hold directorship, retirement benefits

fund and key management personnel. Details of transactions with related parties during the year, other than those which have been

disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:

Diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible instruments in issue as at 30 June

2023 (30 June 2022: Nil) which would have any effect on the earnings per share if the option to convert is exercised. 

Name of related party

Ghani Ceramics Limited

The Company issued bonus shares for the year ended 30 June 2023 @ 113.9% per share (30 June 2022: Nil). The earnings per share

of the prior year have been restated to incorporate the effect of these bonus shares.



28.1 Significant related party transactions entered into by the Company during the year are as follows:

28.1.1 Transactions with associate - Ghani Glass Limited

2023 2022

Rupees Rupees

Opening balance 498,552,610

         

47,074,801

          

Purchase of raw materials 1,980,444,946

      

1,856,339,947

      

Cullet sales (38,558,096)

          

(14,445,460)

         

Sale of reflective mirror (30,423,714)

          

(56,625,507)

         

Sale of laminated, mirror and tempered glass (10,828,197)

          

-

                     

Reimbursement of shared expenses (21,532,693)

          

(10,748,659)

         

Shared expenses 17,001,090

           

13,030,898

          

Purchase of generator/(sale of generator) 27,342,628

           

(31,473,000)

         

Purchase of stores & spares 3,654,858

            

3,335,553

           

Payments made during the year (1,400,485,553)

     

(1,307,935,963)

     

Closing balance 1,025,167,879

      

498,552,610

        

28.1.2 Transaction with other related parties

2023 2022

Rupees Rupees

Ghani Foundation Trust Donation          108,555,261            96,503,370 

Ghani Ceramics Ltd Purchase of tiles                         -   1,329,961

           

Ghani Ceramics Ltd Sale of Tempering Glass                851,686 -

                     

Sale of Tempering Glass             1,257,385 -

                     

Staff retirement benefit Contribution during the year            41,799,404 36,146,572

          

Directors and their spouses Expense incurred on behalf of Company             8,444,698 -

                     

28.1.3 Remuneration of the Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Managerial remuneration 25,090,560 22,809,600 74,911,980 68,101,800 61,818,534 56,550,434

Staff retirement benefits 2,090,880 1,900,800 6,242,665 5,675,150 5,089,035 4,712,536

Reimbursements 1,922,169 4,000,000 8,297,957 8,000,000 - -

Bonus 6,272,640 10,834,560 18,727,995 32,348,355 15,454,634 26,441,011

35,376,249 39,544,960 108,180,597 114,125,305 82,362,203 87,703,981

Number of persons 1 1 2 2 4 4

a)

b)

c)

Name of the related party

Chief Executive, Directors and Executives have been provided with Company's maintained vehicles.

The Company in the normal course of business carries out different transactions with Ghani Glass Limited at mutually agreed terms.

The following reconciliation provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with Ghani Glass Limited for the

relevant financial year.

Nature and description of related party 

transactions

Ghani Metal and Rubber Industries 

(Private) Limited

There are no transactions with key management personnel other than under the terms of employment or otherwise disclosed

elsewhere in these financial statements.

No remuneration has been paid to Non-Executive Directors. 

Chief Executive Directors Executives

---------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ----------------------------------------------------
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

30.1 Market risk

30.1.1 Foreign currency risk

2023 2022

Trade debts - USD 3,119 2,555

Trade and other payables - USD (140,601) -

Net exposure - USD (137,482) 2,555

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year: 2023 2022

Rupees per USD

Average rate 232.00

                 

160.00

                

Reporting date rate 287.50

                 

204.00

                

Sensitivity analysis

30.1.2 Interest rate risk

Financial assets of the Company carrying floating rate of return are as follows:
Note 2023 2022

Rupees Rupees

Cash at bank - savings accounts 14             3,178,183            51,295,009 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

2023 2022

Rupees Rupees

+1%                  31,782                512,950 

-1%                 (31,782)               (512,950)

The Company does not have any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in

interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss of the Company.

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including interest rate risk, currency risk, and other price

risk) credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets

and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors (the Board). The Board provides principles for overall risk management, as

well as policies covering specific areas such as currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity. All

treasury related transactions are carried out within the parameters of these policies.

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise

finance for the Company’s operations. The Company has various financial assets such as deposits, trade and other receivables, profit

accrued and cash and bank balances, which are directly related to its operations.

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the

Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and

control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. Market prices comprise three types of risk:

interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk. Financial instruments susceptible to market risk include trade and other payables

and trade receivables. The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 30 June 2023.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in

market interest rates. The Company has no interest bearing borrowings as at 30 June 2023, however, the Company is exposed to profit

rate risk on balance placed in profit or loss sharing bank accounts.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign

exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to

transactions in foreign currencies. 

The Company is exposed to currency risk, primarily with respect to the United States Dollar (USD). The Company's exposure to

currency risk is as follow:

If the functional currency, at reporting date, had weakened / strengthened by 10% against the USD with all other variables held

constant, the impact on profit after taxation for the year would have been Rs. 3.95 million higher / lower (2022: Rs.0.05 million), mainly

as a result of exchange gains / losses on translation of foreign exchange denominated financial instruments. Currency risk sensitivity to

foreign exchange movements has been calculated on a symmetric basis. In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is

unrepresentative of inherent currency risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

If interest rates at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, profit before taxation for the 

year would have been changed as following: Increase / decrease in 

basis points
Effect on

profit before tax

30.1.3 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign

exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to

transactions in foreign currencies.

Monetary items, including financial assets and financial liabilities, denominated in currency other than functional currency of the

Company, are periodically restated to Pak Rupee equivalentand the associated gain or loss is taken to statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income.

The Company does not have any trade receivables or payables designated in foreign currency at the reporting date and hence is not

exposed to any currency risk.



30.1.4 Other price risk

30.2 Credit risk

Note 2023 2022

Exposure to credit risk Rupees Rupees

Trade receivables 30.2.1 262,440,901

         

136,648,520

        

Balances with banks 30.2.2 12,278,262

           

71,654,182

          

Profit accrued on saving accounts 30.2.3 1,073,034

            

672,648

              

Advances to employees against salaries 30.2.3 1,944,739

            

805,173

              

277,736,936

         

209,780,523

        

30.2.1 Trade receivables

01 to 180 days 263,882,653

       

9.65% 25,456,059

     

123,233,689

       

13.02% 16,044,221

          

181 to 365 days 18,687,594

         

69.98% 13,078,502

     

18,482,692

         

65.87% 12,174,945

          

Over 365 days 69,297,417

         

73.44% 50,892,202

     

67,837,034

         

65.87% 44,685,729

          

351,867,664

       

89,426,763

     

       209,553,415 72,904,895

          

-------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) --------------------------------------------------------

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses (ECL). The

provision rates are based on days past due. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and

reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of

future economic conditions.

The Company's credit risk mainly arises from long outstanding receivables as the Company is making full recoveries from the current

customers and hence, default rate in case of such customers is minimal. Set out below is the information about the credit risk

exposure on the Company’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:  

2023 2022

Gross carrying 

amount

Weighted 

average 

expected 

credit loss rate

Expected 

credit losses

Gross carrying 

amount 

Weighted 

average Expected 

credit loss rate

Expected credit 

losses

The credit quality of financial assets can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings or the historical information about counter

party defaults as shown below:

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and

cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 30

days past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external

information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any

credit enhancements held by the Company.

The Company manages credit risk by limiting significant exposure to any individual customer and by obtaining security deposits against 

sales. The Company does not have significant exposure to any individual customer. The carrying values of financial assets susceptible

to credit risk but not impaired are as under:

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in

market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to 

the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is

neither exposed to equity securities price risk nor commodity price risk.
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30.2.2 Bank balances

Short-term Long-term 2023 2022

Rupees Rupees

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited          A-1+          AA+          PACRA 9,004,352

           

23,696,582

          

Bank Alfalah Limited          A-1+          AA+          PACRA 298,030

              

158,565

              

MCB Islamic Bank          A-1+          A          PACRA 270,013

               

4,764,636

           

Albaraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited          A-1          A+          VIS 8,835

                   

8,369

                  

Askari Bank Limited          A-1+          AA+          PACRA 371,132

               

326,064

              

Bank AL Habib Limited          A-1+          AAA          PACRA 199,354

               

68,247

                

The Bank of Punjab          A-1+          AA+          PACRA 504,931

               
9,387,893

           

Dubai Islamic Bank Limited          A-1+          AA          VIS 5,248
                   

5,250
                  

Habib Bank Limited          A-1+          AAA          VIS 717,005
               

16,503,791
          

Allied Bank Limited          A-1+          AAA          PACRA 59,818                 446,918              
Meezan Bank Limited          A-1+          AAA          VIS 401                     400,001              
Soneri Bank Limited          A-1+          AA-          PACRA 224                     31,223                
United Bank Limited          A-1+          AAA          VIS 45,300

                 
43,999

                Faysal Bank Limited          A-1+          AA          PACRA/VIS 89,528

                 
89,525

                Bank Islamic Pakistan Limited          A-1          A+          PACRA 704,091 15,352,677

12,278,262 71,283,740

The credit quality of financial assets held with the financial institutions that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by

reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate:

Rating Rating 

agency
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30.2.3 Other financial assets

30.3 Liquidity risk

Trade and other payables 1,463,366,299

 

1,463,366,299

    

57,776,743

           

1,405,589,556

      

Unclaimed dividends 5,875,569

       

5,875,569

           

5,875,569

            

-

                     

1,469,241,868

 

1,469,241,868

    

63,652,312

           

1,405,589,556

      

Trade and other payables 849,770,168 849,770,168 57,776,743 791,993,425

Unclaimed dividends 5,424,483 5,424,483 5,424,483 -

855,194,651 855,194,651 63,201,226 791,993,425

----------------------------------- (Rupees) -----------------------------------

2022

Carrying 

amount

Contractual

cash flows

Payable on 

demand

Payable within 1 

year

----------------------------------- (Rupees) -----------------------------------

Carrying 

amount

Contractual

cash flows

Payable on 

demand

Payable within 1 

year

Liquidity risk reflects the Company’s inability in raising funds to meet commitments. Management closely monitors the Company’s

liquidity and cash flow position. This includes maintenance of balance sheet liquidity ratios to ensures that sufficient liquid funds are

available to meet any commitments as they arise.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

2023

Due to the Company's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due consideration to their strong

financial standing, the management does not expect non-performance by these counterparties on their obligations to the Company.

Further, the Company has accessed that the ECL on bank balances is immaterial and hence, has not been recognized.

For other financial assets mainly comprising of profit accrued on saving accounts, advances to employees against salaries and margin

deposits, the management has assessed, based on historical experience and available securities, that the expected credit loss

associated with these financial assets is trivial and therefore no impairment charge has been accounted for.

                             
                                                   
                             

30.4 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
01 July Modification Cashflows Other 30 June 

Unclaimed dividends - 2023        5,424,483 -

                 

(154,208,198)

      

         154,659,284             5,875,569 

Unclaimed dividends - 2022        2,876,434                   -         (641,865,641)          644,413,690             5,424,483 

30.5 Financial instruments by categories 2023 2022

Rupees RupeesFinancial assets at amortized cost

Trade receivables 262,440,901 136,648,520

Profit accrued on saving accounts 1,073,034 672,648

Balances with banks 12,278,262 71,654,182

Advances to employees against salaries 1,944,739 805,173

277,736,936 209,780,523
Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Trade and other payables 1,463,366,299 849,770,168

Unclaimed dividends 5,875,569 5,424,483

1,469,241,868 855,194,651

--------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------------------------------

                                           

                     
                          

                 

31 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

31.1 Fair value of non-financial assets

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Freehold land as at 30 June 2023        462,840,000          462,840,000 

Freehold land as at 30 June 2022                   -          462,840,000                         -            462,840,000 

There were no transfers between Level 2 and Level 3 during the year ended 30 June 2023 (2022: Nil).

The Company had the following non-financial asset with respect to their level of fair value modelling:

----------------------------------- (Rupees) -----------------------------------

      

            

              

Valuation techniques used to derive fair values

The most significant unobservable valuation input used into this valuation approach is price per square meter. Significant increases /

(decreases) in estimated price per square meter in isolation would result in a significantly higher / (lower) fair value on a linear basis. 

The Company obtains independent valuations for its freehold land at least every three years. At the end of each reporting period, the

management updates its assessment of the fair value of each asset mentioned above, taking into account the most recent independent

valuation. The management determines an asset’s value within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. Level 2 fair value of freehold

land has been derived using a sales comparison approach. Sale prices of comparable land in close proximity are adjusted for

differences in key attributes such as location and size of the property. 



31.2 Fair value of non-financial liabilities

The Company does not hold any non financial liability at fair value as at year end (2022: Nil).

31.3 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current

transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The above financial assets and liabilities approximate their

carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. Further, the Company does not have any financial asset

or financial liability at fair value as at year end. 
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32 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

33 PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION 2023 2022

Mirror glass

Production capacity in square meter 8,557,910 8,557,910

Actual production in square meter 2,648,353 2,920,977

Utilization of production capacity 31% 34%

Tempered Glass

Production capacity in square meter 500,000 500,000

Actual production in square meter 357,558 172,358

Utilization of production capacity 72% 34%

Automotive

Production capacity in number of units 25,000 25,000

Actual production in number of units 143 304

Utilization of production capacity 0.6% 1%

33.1

34 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2023 2022

Number Number

Total number of employees as at 30 June 504 432

Average number of employees during the year 465 421

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide

adequate returns for shareholders, maintain strong credit rating benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital

structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company finances its operations through equity and managing working capital. The Company has no gearing risk in current year

that needs to be managed as it does not have any long-term borrowings. The Company does not have any requirement of externally

imposed capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. In order to

maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to

shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policy and processes during the year ended 30 June 2023.

Under utilization in production capacity is due to low demand.

35 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

36 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

_______________________

CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

_____________________________

DIRECTOR

____________________

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 03 October, 2023 has proposed  bonus shares issue at the rate of Nil (2022: 20%) 

and  final cash dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2023 at the rate of Rs. Nil per share amounting to Rs.Nil (2022: Cash dividend of 

Rs. Nil per share amounting to Rs. Nil ). The appropriation will be approved by the members in the forth coming Annual General Meeting. These 

financial statements do not include the effect of these appropriations which will be accounted for subsequent to the year end.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and authorized for issue on .03 October, 2023



thNotice is hereby given that 57  Annual General Meeting of the members of GHANI VALUE GLASS LIMITED will be held on Friday 
October 27, 2023 at 11:30 a.m, at Park Lane Hotel, 107-B3, Gulberg III, M.M. Alam Road, Lahore to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business

1.     To confirm the minutes of Extraordinary General Meeting held on March 31, 2023.

2.     To receive, consider and adopt the audited annual accounts of GHANI VALUE GLASS LIMITED for the year ended 
June 30, 2023 together with the Directors' and Auditors' reports thereon.

3. To approve, Interim Cash Dividend of 20% i.e. Rs.2 per share, (already paid) and Interim Stock Dividend @ 93.9% i.e. 
93.9 bonus shares for every 100 shares held (bonus shares already credited) for the year ended June 30, 2023.

4.  To appoint auditors for the year ending June 30, 2024 and fix their remuneration.

Special Business

Dissemination of information regarding Annual Audited Financial Statement to the shareholders through QR 
enabled code and weblink 

5.    To consider dissemination of annual audited financial statements through QR enabled code and weblink instead of 
transmitting the same in the form of CD/DVD/USB and approve the following resolution as a Special Resolution with or 
without modification.

“RESOLVED that dissemination of information regarding annual audited financial statements to the shareholders 
through QR enabled code and weblink as notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide its SRO 

st389 (1)/2023  dated 21  March, 2023, be and is hereby approved while considering technological advancements and old 
technology becoming obsolete., the circulation of annual financial statements through CD/DVD/USB be discontinued.”

6.   To consider and if deemed fit, pass, with or without modification, the following Special Resolution to amend the Articles of 
Association of the Company:

“RESOLVED that approval be and is hereby given to amend the existing Article 80 of the Articles of Association by 
substituting with following:

Capitalization of Reserve:

Article 80

The Board of Directors may resolve that any moneys, investments, or other assets forming part of the undivided profits of 
the Company standing to the credit of any reserve or other fund or in the hands of the Company and available for 
dividend (or representing premiums received on the issue of shares and standing to the credit of the shares premium 
account) be capitalized and distributed amongst such of the shareholders as would be entitled to receive the same if 
distributed by way of dividend and in the same proportions on the footing that they become entitled thereto as capital and 
that all or any part of such capitalized fund be applied on behalf of such shareholders in paying up in full, any unissued 
shares, debentures or debenture-stock of the Company which shall be distributed accordingly and that such distribution 
or payment shall be accepted by such shareholders in full satisfaction of their interest in the said capitalized sum.

7. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.
By order of the Board

Lahore: October 5, 2023                                                                                                       
Hafiz Muhammad Imran Sabir

      Company Secretary
Notes:

·The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from October 21, 2023 to October 27, 2023 (both days inclusive). 
Members whose names appear on the register of members as at the close of business on October 20, 2023 will be entitled to 
attend the Annual General Meeting.

·A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint another member as a proxy to 
attend and vote on his/her behalf. A corporation being a member may appoint as its proxy any of its official or any other person 
whether a member of the Company or not. 

·The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed, or a notarized 
certified copy of the power of attorney or authority in order to be effective must be deposited at the Share Registrar of the 
Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting, and must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed.

·Members are requested to promptly notify Company's Shares Registrar M/s. Corplink (Pvt.) Ltd., Wings Arcade, 1-K 
Commercial, Model Town, Lahore, Ph: 042-35916714, 35916719 Fax: 042-35869037 of any change in their addresses to 
ensure delivery of mail.

·CDC Accountholders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down by Circular No. 1, dated January 26, 2000, issued 
by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (“SECP”).

Video Conference Facility

In terms of the Companies Act, 2017, members residing in a city holding at least 10% of the total paid up share capital may demand the 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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facility of video-link for participating in the annual general meeting. The request for video-link facility shall be received by the Share 
Registrar at the address given hereinabove at least 7 days prior to the date of the meeting on the Standard Form placed in the annual 
report which is also available on the website of the Company.

In compliance with the guidelines issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide circular No.6 of 2021 issued on 
March 03, 2021, the company has arranged a video link facility for shareholders to participate in the meeting through their smartphones 
or computer devices from their homes or any convenient location after completing meeting attendance formalities. Shareholders 
interested in attending the meeting through the video link are requested to register by submitting their following particulars at the 
Company Secretary's email (hafiz.imran@ghaniglass.com) not later than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting. The link to 
participate in the meeting will be sent to the shareholders at the email address provided by them. Shareholders are requested to fill the 
particulars as per the below table:

Electronic Voting  

In accordance with the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018, for the purpose of approval of any agenda item at the Annual 
General Meeting, members will be allowed to exercise their vote through postal ballot i.e., by post or e-voting, in the manner and 
subject to conditions contained in the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018

Procedure for E-Voting

a. In accordance with the Companies (Postal Ballot Regulation , 2018 (the “regulation”) the right to vote through electronic 
voting facility and voting by post shall be provided to members of every listed company for, inter alia, all businesses classified as special 
business under the Companies Act, 2017 in the manner and subject to conditions contained in the Regulations.

b. Detail of e-voting facility will be shared through e-mail with those members of the company who have valid CNIC numbers, 
cell numbers/email addresses (Registered email ID) available in the Register of Members of the Company by the end of business on 
October 20, 2023. Members who intend to exercise their right of vote through E-voting shall provide their valid CNIC number, cell 
numbers and email addresses on or before October 20, 2023.

c. Identity of the Members intending to cast vote through e-voting shall be authenticated through electronic signature or 
authentication for login.

d. Members shall cast vote for agenda item No.5 & 6 online from October 24, 2023, 9:30 a.m. till October 26, 2023, 5:30 p.m. 
Voting shall close on October 26, 2023 at 5:30 p.m. A vote once cast by a member shall not be allowed to be changed.

Procedure for Voting Through Postal Ballot

a. Members may alternatively opt for voting through postal ballot. For convenience of the members, Ballot Paper is annexed to 
this notice and the same is also available on the Company's website www.ghanivalueglass.com to download.

b. The members must ensure that the dully filled and signed ballot paper along with a copy of Computerized National Identity 
Card (CNIC) should reach the Chairman of the meeting through post at the Company's registered address Ghani Value Glass Limited, 
40-L, Model Town Ext., Lahore, or email at chairman.gvg@ghaniglass.com one day before the Annual General Meeting i.e. October 
26, 2023 before 5:30 p.m. A postal ballot received after this time/date shall not be considered for voting. The signature on the Ballot 
Paper shall match with signature on the CNIC.

Withholding tax on dividend income

It is further informed that pursuant to the provisions of Finance Act 2014, effective from July 1, 2014 a new criteria for withholding of tax 
on dividend income was introduced by the FBR. The 'Filer' and 'Non-Filer' shareholder shall pay tax on dividend @ 15% and 30% 
respectively.

Mandatory Payment of Cash Dividend Through Electronic Mode

The provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 require the listed companies that any dividend payable in cash shall only be 
paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. Accordingly, the shareholders 
holding physical shares are requested to provide the following information to the Company's Share Registrar at the  address given 
herein above. In case of shares held in CDC, the same information should be provided directly to the CDS participants for updating and 
forwarding to the Company.
Folio No/Investor Account /CDC sub Account No:
Title of Account:
CNIC No:
IBAN No:
Bank Name:
Branch address:
Cell No:
Name of Network (if protected):
Email Address:

___________________
Signature of Shareholder

Name of 
Shareholder 

CNIC NO. Folio /CDC 
Account No. 

No. of Shares  
Held  

Cell No.  Email address

     

Ghani Value Glass Limited 47



Transmission of Annual Financial Statements through e-mail

In pursuance of the directions given by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide SRO 787(I)/2014 dated 
September 8, 2014, those shareholders who desire to receive Annual Financial Statements in future through e-mail instead of 
receiving the same by Post are advised to give their formal consent along with their e-mail address duly signed by the shareholder 
along with copy of his CNIC to our share registrar's office, M/s. Corplink (Pvt) Ltd, Wings arcade, 1-k, commercial, Model Town, Lahore. 
Please note that giving e-mail address for receiving of Annual Financial Statements instead of the same by Post is optional, in case you 
do not wish to avail this facility, please ignore this notice, Financial Statement will be sent to you at your registered address.

Exemption from deduction of Income Tax/Zakat

Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible for deduction at a reduced rate are requested to submit a valid 
tax exemption certificate or necessary documentary evidence as the case may be. Members desiring non-deduction of zakat are also 
requested to submit a valid declaration for non-deduction of zakat.

Statement of Material Facts under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017

Item No.5  

Dissemination of information regarding Annual Audited Financial Statement to the shareholders through QR enabled code 
and weblink 

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on October 03, 2023 has recommended to dissemine the information regarding Annual 
Audited Financial Statement to the shareholders through QR enabled code and weblink. In order to implement SECP notification with 
respect to transmission/ circulation of information such as annual audited financial statements through QR enabled code and weblink 
instead of CD/DVD/USB and will also be provided through e-mail if they desire to receive the same at their e-mail addresses. Special 
resolution is a part of the notice for concurrence of shareholders to adopt the newly introduced mode of transmission. However, for 
convenience of shareholders Standard Request Form is available on Company's website for those who opt to receive the hard copy of 
annual audited financial statements with relevant documents at their registered addresses.

Item No.6

Capitalization of Reserve:

The Board of Directors has proposed that Article 80 of the Articles of Association of the Company be altered to bring it in line with the 
Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020.

For this purpose, it is proposed that the resolution set out in the notice of Annual General Meeting of the company be passed as a 
Special Resolution.

A comparison of existing clause and proposed alteration in the Articles of Association is given below:

Interest of Directors

The directors are not interested, directly or indirectly, in the above businesses except to the extent of their shareholding in company.

Availability of Documents

All material information (including Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and SECP notification regarding annual 
accounts) in respect of special businesses are placed for information of the shareholders at the registered office of the company and 
shall be available for inspection from 9:30 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. on any working day before the date of Annual General Meeting. The audited 
financial statement of the company for the year ended June 30, 2023 have been placed at the Company's website 
www.ghanivalueglass.com.

Existing Article 80 Amended Article 80 

Payment of Dividend in Specie: With the sanction of a 
general meeting any dividend may be paid wholly or in part 
by the distribution of specific assets and in particular of paid-
up shares or debentures of any other company or in any one 
or more of such ways. Where any difficulty arises in regard to 
such distribution, the Directors may settle the same as they 
think expedient, and in particular may fix the value for 
distribution of such specific assets or any part thereof and 
may determine that cash payments shall be made to any 
members upon the footing of the value so fixed, in order to 
adjust the rights of all members, and may vest any such 
specific assets in trustees upon trust for the members entitles 
to the dividend as may seem expedient to the Directors.

Capitalization of Reserve: The Board of Directors may 
resolve that any moneys, investments, or other assets 
forming part of the undivided profits of the Company standing 
to the credit of any reserve or other fund or in the hands of the 
Company and available for dividend (or representing 
premiums received on the issue of shares and standing to 
the credit of the shares premium account) be capitalized and 
distributed amongst such of the shareholders as would be 
entitled to receive the same if distributed by way of dividend 
and in the same proportions on the footing that they become 
entitled thereto as capital and that all or any part of such 
capitalized fund be applied on behalf of such shareholders in 
paying up in full, any unissued shares, debentures or 
debenture-stock of the Company which shall be distributed 
accordingly and that such distribution or payment shall be 
accepted by such shareholders in full satisfaction of their 
interest in the said capitalized sum.
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Ballot Paper for Voting Through Post
(Annual General Meeting to be held at 11:30 a.m on Friday October 27, 2023)

Designated email address of the Chairman at which the duly filled in ballot paper may be sent: chairman.gvg@ghaniglass.com 

I/we hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following resolution through postal ballot by conveying my/our assent or dissent to 
the following resolution by picking tick (a)   mark in the appropriate box below  

Signature of Shareholder(s)
Place
Date
NOTES:

1. Dully filled and signed original postal ballot should be sent to the chairman, Ghani Value Glass Limited at 40-L, Model Town 
Ext. Lahore or a scanned copy of the original postal ballot to be emailed at chairman.gvg@ghaniglass.com

2. Copy of CNIC/ Passport (in case of foreigner) should be enclosed with the postal ballot form.
3. Postal Ballot forms should reach chairman of the meeting on or before October 26, 2023 during working hours. Any Postal 

Ballot received after this date, will not be considered for voting.
4. Signature on Postal Ballot should match the signature on CNIC / Passport ( in case of foreigner)
5. Incomplete, unsigned, in correct, defaced, torn, mutilated, over written ballot papers will be rejected
6. In case of representative of body corporate and corporation, Postal Ballot must be accompanied with copy of CNIC of 

authorized person along with duly attested copy of Board resolution, Power of Attorney, or Authorization letter in accordance 
with Section 138 or 139 of the Companies Act 2017, as applicable unless these have already been submitted along with Proxy 
Form. In case of foreign body corporate etc. all documents must be attested from the Pakistani Embassy having jurisdiction 
over the member.

7. Ballot paper has also been placed on the website of the Company www.ghanivalueglass.com. Member may download the 
ballot paper from the website or use original/photocopy published in newspapers.

Sr. No. Name and Description of Resolutions I/We assent to 
the Resolution 

(FOR) 

I/We  dissent to 
the Resolution 

(AGAINST) 
5   

6 

 

  

RESOLVED that dissemination of information regarding annual audited 
financial statements to the shareholders through QR enabled code and 
weblink as notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of 

stPakistan vide its SRO 389 (1)/2023  dated 21  March, 2023, be and is 
hereby approved while considering technological advancements and old 
technology becoming obsolete., the circulation of annual financial 
statements through CD/DVD/USB be discontinued.”

“RESOLVED that approval be and is hereby given to amend the existing 
Article 80 of the Articles of Association by substituting with following:

Capitalization of Reserve:

Article 80

The Board of Directors may resolve that any moneys, investments, or 
other assets forming part of the undivided profits of the Company 
standing to the credit of any reserve or other fund or in the hands of the 
Company and available for dividend (or representing premiums received 
on the issue of shares and standing to the credit of the shares premium 
account) be capitalized and distributed amongst such of the 
shareholders as would be entitled to receive the same if distributed by 
way of dividend and in the same proportions on the footing that they 
become entitled thereto as capital and that all or any part of such 
capitalized fund be applied on behalf of such shareholders in paying up in 
full, any unissued shares, debentures or debenture-stock of the 
Company which shall be distributed accordingly and that such 
distribution or payment shall be accepted by such shareholders in full 
satisfaction of their interest in the said capitalized sum.

Name of shareholder/Joint shareholders  
Registered Address  
Number of Share held (on close of October 20, 2023) and folio 
number  

 

CNIC No./Passport No (in case of foreigner) 
(Copy to be attached) 

 

Additional information and enclosures  
(In case of representative of body corporate, Corporation and Federal 
Government) 
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
OF SHARES HELD BY THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF GHANI VALUE GLASS LIMITED AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

     ------Shareholdings------

2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held

447 1 100 11,406
1,431 101 500 335,526
431 501 1,000 314,114
747 1,001 5,000 1,661,405
136 5,001 10,000 969,152
67 10,001 15,000 869,695
28 15,001 20,000 484,408
17 20,001 25,000 390,230
16 25,001 30,000 439,016
8 30,001 35,000 258,571
12 35,001 40,000 450,807
4 40,001 45,000 174,337
6 45,001 50,000 282,214
4 50,001 55,000 209,408
6 55,001 60,000 348,938
5 60,001 65,000 315,782
1 65,001

                                 

70,000 66,327
1 80,001

                                 

85,000 83,764
1 85,001

                                 

90,000 86,754
2 90,001

                                 

95,000 185,934
2 95,001

                                 

100,000 192,712
1 100,001

                               

105,000 101,297
1 110,001

                               

115,000 113,431
1 115,001

                               

120,000 117,272
1 120,001

                               

125,000 122,157
1 125,001

                               

130,000 126,814
2 130,001

                               

135,000 263,884
2 135,001

                               

140,000 278,052
2 140,001

                               

145,000 283,869
1 145,001

                               

150,000 149,060
1 150,001

                               

155,000 150,272
2 160,001

                               

165,000 326,845
1 190,001

                               

195,000 193,900
1 205,001

                               

210,000 209,412
1 215,001

                               

220,000 215,545
1 220,001

                               

225,000 222,597
1 230,001

                               

235,000 233,005
1 275,001

                               

280,000 275,159
2 290,001

                               

295,000 581,700
1 325,001

                               

330,000 329,725
1 340,001

                               

345,000 340,294
1 345,001

                               

350,000 349,020
1 350,001

                               

355,000 354,621
1 370,001

                               

375,000 371,270
1 430,001

                               
435,000 430,077

1 595,001
                               

600,000 599,096
1 665,001                               670,000 666,787
1 675,001                               680,000 677,680
1 865,001

                               
870,000 867,450

1 880,001

                               
885,000 880,693

1 895,001

                               

900,000 897,757
1 1,045,001

                            

1,050,000 1,047,060
1 2,950,001

                            

2,955,000 2,952,127
1 2,960,001

                            

2,965,000 2,964,244
1 3,970,001

                            

3,975,000 3,974,174
1 4,630,001

                            

4,635,000 4,633,542
1 4,640,001

                            

4,645,000 4,642,489
1 4,805,001

                            

4,810,000 4,807,298
1 4,815,001

                            

4,820,000 4,816,677
1 4,820,001

                            

4,825,000 4,820,284
1 5,070,001

                            

5,075,000 5,070,097
1 21,770,001

                          

21,775,000 21,771,867
1 30,910,001

                          

30,915,000 30,914,242
1 38,665,001

                          

38,670,000 38,668,833

3,420 149,942,175

2.3 Categories of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

2.3.1  Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 115,899,414 77.2961%

         and their spouse and minor children

2.3.2  Associated Companies, 0 0.0000%

         undertakings and related

         parties. (Parent Company)

2.3.3  NIT and ICP 2,701 0.0018%

2.3.4  Banks Development 116 0.0001%

         Financial Institutions, Non

         Banking Financial Institutions.

2.3.5  Insurance Companies 0 0.0000%

2.3.6  Modarabas and Mutual Funds 0 0.0000%

2.3.7  Shareholders holding 10% or more 92,018,857 61.3696%

2.3.8  General Public

a. Local 32,406,809 21.6129%

b. Foreign 42 0.0000%
2.3.9 Others (to be specified)

-  Joint Stock Companies 502,468 0.3351%

-  Others 1,130,625 0.7540%
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AS ON JUNE 30, 2023

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Sr. No. Name No. of Shares Held Percentage

-

                             

-

                            

Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail) -

                            
 

-

                            

Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):  

1 MR. IMTIAZ AHMED KHAN 30,941,051

                  

20.6353

2 MR. OBAID GHANI 4,643,135

                   

3.0966

3 MR. ANWAAR AHMAD KHAN 21,804,848

                  

14.5422

4 MR. AFTAB AHMAD KHAN 39,272,958

                  

26.1921

5 MR. IBRAHIM GHANI 101,297

                      

0.0676

6 MR. JUBAIR GHANI 4,816,769

                   

3.2124

7 MR. AWAIS AHMAD 1,454

                          
0.0010

8 MR. UMAIR GHANI 4,816,824
                   

3.2125

9 MRS. MARYAM JUNAID 3,276
                          

0.0022

10 MR. MUHAMMAD MUSHTAQ 1,310                          0.0009

11 MR. TAHIR GHAFOOR KHAN 1,163                          0.0008

12 MR. MUHAMMAD AYUB 1,368                          0.0009

13 MRS. ROBINA IMTIAZ W/O IMTIAZ AHMAD KHAN (CDC) 87
                              

0.0001

14 MRS. AYESHA AFTAB W/O AFTAB AHMAD KHAN 867,760

                      
0.5787

15 MRS. REEMA ANWAAR W/O ANWAAR AHMAD KHAN 3,974,321

                   

2.6506

16 MR. JUNAID GHANI H/O MARYUM JUNAID 4,642,694

                   

3.0963

17 MRS. JAVERIA OBAID W/O OBAID GHANI 8,952

                          

0.0060

18 MRS. MUSFIRA JUBAIR W/O JUBAIR GHANI 147

                            

0.0001

Executives: -

                             

-

                            
Public Sector Companies & Corporations: -

                             

-

                            

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 116

                            

0.0001

Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise)

1 MR. IMTIAZ AHMED KHAN 30,941,051 20.6353

2 MR. ANWAAR AHMAD KHAN 21,804,848 14.5422

3 MR. AFTAB AHMAD KHAN 39,272,958

Nil

26.1921

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail):

Trading in the shares of the company, carried out its by Director’s, Executives
and their spouses and minor children:



6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

- 

- 

-     

 
6 

 
-

-

 

-
 
-
 

2
 
-
 

 2

 -

-

6

-

-

2

- -

- -

- -

6
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20232022

3,411,370

1,276,210

877,164

755,872

5.04

3,826,844

1,332,456

895,991

515,329

3.44
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Folio No.

No. of Shares

I/WE

of

Being a member of Ghani Value Glass Limited

Hereby appoint Mr.

of

failing him Mr. 

th
(Being a member of the company) as my/our Proxy to attend and vote for  me/us on my behalf at  57  
Annual General Meeting of the members of GHANI VALUE GLASS LIMITED to be held on Friday 
October 27, 2023 at 11:30 A.M, at Park Lane Hotel, 107 B3, Gulberg-III, MM Alam Road, Lahore and 
at any adjournment there of.

As witness my/our hand(s) this day of 2023

Witness's Signature

Signature

Name:

Address:

of

NOTES:
Proxies, in order to be effective, by the company not later than 48 hours before the meeting and 
must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed.

Signature and        
Revenue Stamp

40-L, Model Town, Lahore

Request for Video Conferencing Facility Form

I/We, ______________________________ of ___________________________ being a member of

Ghani Value Glass Limited, holder of ___________________________________________________

Ordinary Share(s) as per Register Folio No/CDC A/c No.____________________________________

hereby opt for video conference facility at ________________________________________________.

_________________________________ Date: ______________________

Ghani Value Glass Limited
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